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Purchasing Department 

City Hall, 73 Harlow Street 
Bangor, Maine 04401 

Tel. 207-992-4282 
 

Request for Proposals 
Employee Assistance Program Services 

Issue Date: October 17, 2016 
 
Addendum No. 1 
 
The following questions were submitted.  The City’s responses to the questions follow in 
Italics.  
 

1. Who currently provides EAP services to the City of Bangor?  For how many years?   
 
A: The EAP program for the City of Bangor is currently provided by Anthem.  
This service took effect October 7, 2016 and expires January 5, 2017.  Prior to 
entering the three month agreement w ith Anthem the EAP provider for the 
City of Bangor was Stevens Wellspring Group. Stevens Wellspring Group 
serviced the City from 2009 through September 2016. 
 

2. Are you currently pleased with the EAP services you are receiving? 
 

A: We had been pleased w ith the services provided through Stevens 
Wellspring Group while they were available.  We have been pleased w ith the 
initial services, effective October 7, 2016, provided by Anthem. 

 
3. Are there specific areas of enhancement you are seeking at this time? 

 
A: An online service option was not available to our employees w ith 
services prior to October 2016.  The abil ity to provide employees to 
reach assistance not only by telephone but via online services would be 
a benefit.  

 
4. What is the City of Bangor currently paying for their EAP services?  Based on 

how many employees?   
 
A: The City is currently paying $1.07 per employee/ per month w ith 
Anthem.  The employee base is 650 individuals employed.  The contract 
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w ith Stevens Wellspring incurred a $5.50 annual fee per person.  
Additional fees per use: 

• $35 per Telephonic Init ial Screening & Referral 
• $105/ hr Assessment and Referral Services 

 
5. What was the total dollar spend for the EAP in 2015? 
 

A: $4,685 
 
6. What was the total dollar spend for the EAP in 2014?  
 

A: $5,855 
 
7. How many EAP sessions are being offered to City of Bangor employees or 

employee dependents? 
 
A: Employees are eligible for three visits. 

 
8. Is the City of Bangor currently receiving Work-Life Services, i.e. telephonic 

consultation and referral for Child Care, Elder Care, etc.? Should Work-Life 
Services be included in the quote to be submitted? 

 
A: We are currently receiving these services.  I f these services are 
available they should be included in the quote. 

 
9. Is the City of Bangor currently receiving Legal Consultation Services, i.e. 30-

minute consultation with an attorney; beyond the consultation, attorney services 
offered at a 25% discount?  Should Legal Consultation Services be included in 
the quote to be submitted?  

 
A: The current contract does include one 30 minute in person or 
telephonic legal consultation.  This service should be included in the 
quote. 

 
10.   Is the City of Bangor currently receiving Financial Consultation Services, i.e. 

telephone-based financial advisory services provided by qualified financial 
planners? Should Financial Consultation Services be included in the quote to be 
submitted?  
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A: The current contract does include telephonic financial consultation.  
This service should be included in the quote. 

 
11.  Why are you requesting this RFP at this time? 

 
A: The request was posted based on the contract w ith Stevens 
Wellspring expiring at the end of 2016.  These services ended prior to 
that date hence the need for a 3 month contract to carry the city 
through the proposal process. 

 
12.   Can you provide total number of initial inquiry/assessment calls to the EAP in 

2014 and 2015? 
 

A: The City was billed for four init ial inquiry/ assessment calls in 2015 
and seven in 2014.  
 

13.  Can you provide the total number of in-person and telephonic EAP sessions 
provided in 2015? 
 
A: The City was billed for eleven sessions in 2015.  We are unable to 
determine if the sessions w ere in person or telephonic. 

 
14.  Can you provide the total number of in-person and telephonic EAP sessions 

provided in 2014? 
 
A: The City was billed for twenty-two sessions in 2014. We are unable 
to determine if the sessions were in person or telephonic. 

 
15.  Can you provide the total number of in-person and telephonic EAP sessions 

provided in 2013? 
 
A: The City was billed for seven telephonic referrals/ screenings and 35 
consultations in 2013.  
 

16.  Can you provide the total number of EAP cases in 2015 and 2014? 
 

A: This information is unknown. 
 



Addendum No. 1 Page 4 of 7 EAP Services 
 

17.  Can you provide the average number of sessions provided per case in 2014 and 
2015? 

 
A: This information is unknown. 
 

18.  Do you prefer electronic communication materials, i.e. brochures, posters, or 
“hard copy” materials, or a combination of both? 

 
A: We would prefer a combination of both. 

 
19.  Can you provide the number of training hours provided in 2014 and 2015? How 

many of those hours were provided in-person? 
 

A: Training hours w ere not provided or requested in 2014 or 2015.  
 
20.  How many in-person hours are included annually in the current contract? 
 

A: The current contract provides one in person hour long training 
session. 

 
21.  Can you provide the number of orientation hours provided in 2014 and 2015? 

 
A: Orientation hours were not provided or requested in 2014 or 2015. 

 
22.  How many in-person hours of orientation are included annually in the current 

contract? 
 

A: One hour. 
 

23.  How many Critical Incident events were responded to in 2014 and 2015? 
 

A: No crit ical incident events were reported in 2014 or 2015.  
 

24.  How many hours of Critical Incident support were provided in 2014 and 2015? 
 

A: No crit ical incident hours were requested in 2014 or 2015.  
 

25.  How many hours of on-site Critical Incident support are currently provided in the 
contracted rate?  
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A: One hour of on-site crit ical incident support is included in the 
contracted rate.  Additional t ime is billed at the rate of $300/ hour. 

 
26.  What is the total number of EAP sessions allowed per person per year and is an 

eligible person allowed to use EAP services more than once per year for different 
issues? 

 
A: Three sessions are allowed per person per issue on an annual basis. 

 
27.  What is the contract start date?  

 
A: January 2, 2017 
 

28.   What languages are services required in? 
 

A: English. 
 

29.  Do any employees fall under DOT regulations? If so how many? 
 

A: Yes, approximately 115.  
 

30.  How has the EAP historically been promoted to employees – what promotion 
methods have been utilized? 

 
A: EAP is promoted to employees through vendor provided materials 
(brochures, posters, and flyers).  The City also reviews the benefit in 
the Personnel Rules and Regulations, provided to all employees. 
 

31.  Do you prefer onsite orientations? 
 
A: Yes.  

 
32.  What is your targeted decision date? 

 
A: First week in December. 

 
33.  Shall we list any additional services for them that we provide? 

 
A: Yes, additional services available should be provided in the contract 
along w ith the cost of the service. 

 
34.  The RFP references an attachment: the current EAP policy.  Will the City be 

providing this? 
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A: See attached. 
 

35.  The RFP does not reference any need for specific support for compliance with 
DOT (Dept of Transportation) regulated employee situations (i.e. DOT regulated 
drivers failing drug tests)?  Please confirm and detail the support the City will 
require from the selected EAP vendor.   

 
A: DOT regulated employees that who fail drug and/ or alcohol testing 
would be subject to a mandatory referral to a Substance Abuse 
Professional (SAP) for assessment and formulation of a treatment plan.  
The EAP provider w ould need to be able refer the individual to an SAP.   

 
36.  Are part-time employees entitled to EAP benefits? 

 
A: Yes. 

 
37.  Do you need onsite critical incident debriefing services? 

 
A: Yes. 
 

38.  What is your preferred rate quote- pepy, pepm, flat rate, etc.? 
 

A: We do not have a preferred method.  
 

39. Is the City’s health insurance self-funded? 
 

A: No.  
All other terms, conditions and specifications remain the same.  
 
Please acknowledge this addendum by signing the acknowledgement below and 
returning this page with your bid. If you have already submitted a bid and would like to 
make a change reflecting this addendum, you may request in writing your bid be 
returned to you.  
 
The following Addendum(s) is/are hereby acknowledged: 
 
Addendum No. 1 – Issued October 17, 2016 
 
 
____________________________________ 
Business Name 
 
____________________________________ 
Name (print or type)  
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_______________________________ 
Signature 
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